FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT	
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
Government-wide Financial Statements	
Statement of Net Position	
Statement of Activities	8
Fund Financial Statements–Governmental Funds	
Balance Sheet-General Fund	9
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-	
General Fund	10
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in	
Fund Balance–General Fund to the Statement of Activities	11
Notes to Financial Statements	12-17
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION	
Budgetary Comparison Schedule–General Fund	18
Notes to Required Supplementary Information	19
OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORTS	
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on	
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements	
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards	.20 and 21
Schedule of Findings and Responses	.22 and 23
Independent Auditor's Management Letter	.24 and 25
Independent Accountant's Report - Investment	26



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Trustees
Bayshore Gardens Park & Recreation District
Bradenton, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and major fund (the "General Fund") of Bayshore Gardens Park & Recreation District (the "District"), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, and major fund (the "General Fund"), of the District, as of September 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 6 and the Budgetary Comparison Schedule–General Fund on page 18 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated February 13, 2020, on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Bradenton, Florida February 13, 2020 Mauldin & Jerkins, LLC

This section of the Bayshore Gardens Park & Recreation District's (the "District") financial statements presents a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the District for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2019. Please read the information presented here in conjunction with the financial statements and notes to financial statements that follow this section.

Financial Highlights

- The District's assets exceeded its liabilities (net position at September 30, 2019) by \$2,725,195.
- During the year ending September 30, 2019, expenses (including depreciation of \$84,122) increased from the prior year by \$79,471 or 15%. Revenues increased from the prior year by \$7,714 or 1.0%.
- The change in net position for the year was an increase of \$63,020.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District's financial statements. These financial statements consist of three sections: (1) government-wide financial statements; (2) fund financial statements and; (3) notes to financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements provide both long- and short-term information about the District's overall financial status. These statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting similar to private sector businesses. They include a Statement of Net Position and a Statement of Activities.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on the District's assets and liabilities and the difference between the assets and liabilities (net position) using accounting methods similar to those used by private sector companies. This is a useful way to measure the financial health of the District.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the District's net position changed during the fiscal year. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received or paid.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statement presentation will be more familiar to traditional users of government financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.

The District, like other governmental entities, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The District only has one governmental fund, the General Fund. The General Fund is used to account for essentially the same functions reported in the government-wide financial statements, but is prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on the balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. It is a narrower focus than the government-wide financial statements.

By comparing functions between the two sets of financial statements for the General Fund and governmental activities, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the District's near-term financing decisions. Both the General Fund balance sheet and the General Fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison.

The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for the General Fund. A budgetary comparison schedule is provided as required supplementary information in order to present budgetary compliance.

Notes to Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and General Fund financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) call for certain unaudited information to accompany the audited basic financial statements and accompanying footnotes. This information is called required supplementary information and includes this analysis.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

Statement of Net Position

	 2019		2018		Change
Current and other assets	\$ 1,289,001	\$	1,684,960	\$	(395,959)
Capital assets	 1,501,492		1,057,915		443,577
Total assets	\$ 2,790,493	\$	2,742,875	\$	47,618
Current liabilities	\$ 65,298	\$	80,700	\$	(15,402)
Total liabilities	\$ 65,298	\$	80,700	\$	(15,402)
		_		_	
Investment in capital assets	\$ 1,501,492	\$	1,057,915	\$	443,577
Unrestricted	 1,223,703		1,604,260		(380,557)
Total net position	\$ 2,725,195	\$	2,662,175	\$	63,020
	 			_	

The increase in assets is mainly due to an increase in cash and cash equivalents as a result of the net operating activity during the year.

As noted above, changes in net position over time can be a useful indicator of the District's financial position. As of September 30, 2019, the assets of the District exceeded liabilities by \$2,725,195 (net position). A portion of the District's net position (55.1%) reflects its investment in capital assets. The District uses these capital assets to provide services to residents of the District and others; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.

Statement of Activities

	2019		2018	Change		
Revenues	 					
Program revenues						
Charges for services	\$ 157,055	\$	183,248	\$	(26, 193)	
Operating grants and contributions	-		50		(50)	
General revenues						
Property tax assessments	493,707		476,215		17,492	
Interest income	23,412		9,845		13,567	
Miscellaneous income	 9,144		6,246		2,898	
Total revenues	683,318		675,604		7,714	
Expenses	 					
Culture and recreation	 620,298		540,827		79,471	
Total expenses	620,298		540,827		79,471	
Change in net position	63,020	<u></u>	134,777		(71,757)	
Beginning net position	 2,662,175		2,527,398		134,777	
Ending net position	\$ 2,725,195	\$	2,662,175	\$	63,020	

Revenues increased by \$7,714 over the prior fiscal year due to increased property tax revenues and interest income received in the current year.

Current year expenses increased by \$79,471 over the fiscal year ending September 30, 2019. The majority of the increase was the result of the following:

- Increase in wages from the prior year in the approximate amount of \$28,600.
- Increase in administrative costs from the prior year in the approximate amount of \$32,000.
- Increase in repairs and maintenance from the prior year in the approximate amount of \$5000.
- Increase in insurance of \$6,200
- Increase in recreation of \$5,000

Budgetary Highlights

A summary of significant General Fund variances from budget to actual are as follows:

- Actual property assessment revenue was \$17,491 more than what was budgeted.
- Publications revenue was \$20,284 less than budgeted amount. Parameters of Banner have changed.
- Rental income was \$7,000 over the budgeted amount.
- Repairs and maintenance expenditures were over budget by \$1,200.
- Capital outlays were over budget due to major projects.

Capital Assets Administration

Below is a schedule of the District's capital assets as of September 30, 2019 and 2018:

Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation)

	2019		 2018	Change		
Land	\$	400,000	\$ 400,000	\$	-	
Construction in progress		371,921	-		371,921	
Buildings and improvements		708,144	630,828		77,316	
Furniture, fixtures and equipment		21,427	 27,087		(5,660)	
	\$	1,501,492	\$ 1,057,915	\$	443,577	

Major capital expenditures during the fiscal year included: ADA Lift for the Pool \$8,268; ADA Ramp \$6,900; Resurface Breezeway \$5,968; Fishing Pier Repair \$4,398; Recreation Hall Renovation \$76,715.

See Note B to the financial statements for a detail of activity during the fiscal year and other related information.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District's finances for all those with interest. Questions concerning any of the information in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the District Manager of the Bayshore Gardens Park & Recreation District, 6919 26th Street West, Bradenton, Florida 34207.

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

	Governmental Activities
ASSETS	4 000 450
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 1,282,150
Accounts receivable	107
Prepaid expenses	6,464
Deposits	280
Capital assets, nondepreciable	771,921
Capital assets, depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation	729,571
TOTAL ASSETS	2,790,493
LIABILITIES	
Current liabilities	
Accounts payable	37,468
Accrued liabilities	6,617
Unearned revenue	1,213
Security deposits	20,000
TOTAL LIABILITIES	65,298
NET POSITION	
Investment in capital assets	1,501,492
Unrestricted	1,223,703
TOTAL NET POSITION	\$ 2,725,195

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Functions/Programs	Expenses	Program Charges for Services	Revenues Operating Grants and Contributions	Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position Governmental Activities
Governmental activities Culture and recreation	\$ 620,298	\$ 157,055	\$ -	\$ (463,243)
Total governmental activities	\$ 620,298	\$ 157,055	\$ -	(463,243)
	General revenue Property tax as Interest income Miscellaneous	essessments		493,707 23,412 9,144
	Total general rev	enues		526,263
	Change in net po			63,020 2,662,175
	Net position, end	of year		\$ 2,725,195

BALANCE SHEET GENERAL FUND SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

ASSETS	
Current assets	
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 1,282,150
Prepaid items	6,464
Deposits	 280
TOTAL ASSETS	\$ 1,289,001
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE	
Current liabilities	
Accounts payable	\$ 37,468
Accrued liabilities	6,617
Unearned revenue	1,213
Security deposits	 20,000
TOTAL LIABILITIES	65,298
TOTAL LIABILITIES	 00,200
FUND BALANCE	
Fund balance	
Nonspendable, prepaid items	6,464
Assigned	
Capital projects	1,149,848
Unassigned	 67,391
TOTAL FUND BALANCE	1,223,703
	, ,
Amounts reported for the governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:	
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial	
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.	
Cost \$ 2,600,785	
Less accumulated depreciation (1,099,293)	1,501,492
TOTAL NET POSITION, GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES	\$ 2,725,195

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE GENERAL FUND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

REVENUES	
Property tax assessments	\$ 493,707
Slip and trailer rental	127,128
Rental	21,835
Publications	2,882
Interest income	23,412
Pool rental	50
Other miscellaneous income	14,304
TOTAL REVENUES	683,318
EXPENDITURES	
Current	
Culture and recreation	
Wages	243,652
Administrative	134,300
Repairs and maintenance	73,479
Utilities	34,373
Publications, Banner	18,206
Payroll taxes	17,835
Security	1,500
Concessions	15
District activities	5,375
Capital outlay	535,140
TOTAL EXPENDITURES	1,063,875
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE	(380,557)
FUND BALANCE, beginning of year	1,604,260
FUND BALANCE, end of year	\$ 1,223,703

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE-GENERAL FUND TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:		
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE, General Fund		\$ (380,557)
The General Fund reports capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation expense in the current period.		
Capital outlay	\$ 535,140	
Depreciation expense	 (84,122)	451,018
The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e. sales and disposals) is to decrease net position. This amount is the net		
book value of capital assets disposed of during the current year.		(7,441)
Change in net position of governmental activities		\$ 63,020

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies followed by the Bayshore Gardens Park & Recreation District, Bradenton, Florida (the "District"):

Reporting Entity: The District was created by the Florida Legislature in 1979 by House Bill 1233, and was enacted under the Laws of Florida, Chapter 97-255. This enabling act was revised in 2002, and is now under the Laws of Florida, Chapter 2002-365. The District is an independent recreation district and a political subdivision of the State of Florida, pursuant to Chapter 418, *Florida Statutes*. The District is governed by a nine-member board of trustees, which are elected by the residents of the District. The District operates a recreational park and facility, which includes a marina for the benefit of the residents.

Criteria for determining if other entities are potential component units which should be reported within the District's financial statements are described in GASB Statement No. 14, as amended by GASB Statements No. 39 and No. 61. The application of these criteria provide for identification of any entities for which the District is financially accountable and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the District is such that exclusion would cause the District's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Based on these criteria, no potential component units are required to be included within the reporting entity of the District.

The District is an instrumentality of the state of Florida, and is exempt from federal income tax.

<u>Basis of Presentation</u>: The financial statements of the District have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The GASB has issued a codification of governmental accounting and financial reporting standards. This codification and subsequent GASB pronouncements are recognized as GAAP for state and local governments.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements: The District's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting on the District as a whole) and fund financial statements. The government-wide financial statements (i.e., Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities) report information on all non-fiduciary activities of the District. The government-wide financial statements present governmental activities only. The District has no business-type activities. Separate financial statements are provided for the General Fund.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations are recognized. The District's net position is reported in three parts (as applicable): (1) net investment in capital assets; (2) restricted net position; and (3) unrestricted net position.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The government-wide Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function (or segment) are offset by program revenues. *Direct expenses* are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. *Program revenues* include: (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a function or segment; and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Other revenues not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as *general revenues*.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting: The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are earned, and expenses are recognized at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of the time of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Non-exchange transactions including grants are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements are met. Funds received for which eligibility requirements have not been met are recorded as unearned revenue.

Governmental funds are reported using the *current financial resources measurement focus* and the *modified accrual basis of accounting*. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be *available* when they are collected within the current period or within 60 days after year-end. Grant revenues are recognized when eligibility requirements are met and related amounts are available from the grantor. Expenditures are recorded when the fund liability is incurred.

Property taxes and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the District.

The District reports the following major (and only) governmental fund:

The *General Fund* is the District's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting: The District prepares an annual operating budget for the governmental funds for the fiscal year commencing October 1. Prior to July 1 of each year, the Trustees are required to prepare and adopt an itemized budget for the next fiscal year, which is subject to public hearing and record. The budget is based on prior year analysis of actual revenues and expenditures along with anticipated spending and revenue sources. Expenditures should not exceed the total appropriations. Appropriations lapse at year-end. Changes to the budget must be approved by the Board of Trustees. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The District does not utilize the encumbrance system.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

<u>Cash and Cash Equivalents</u>: The District considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are equal to their market value. The District maintains cash and cash equivalents in checking, savings and certificates of deposit. All deposits are with institutions that are Qualified Public Depositories and, therefore, covered by amounts in excess of depository insurance pursuant to Florida Statutes Chapter 280 "Florida Security for Public Deposits Act."

Receivables: All receivables are deemed collectible.

<u>Property Taxes</u>: Property taxes become due and payable on November 1, of each year. The county tax collector remits the District's portion as such revenues are received. The District collects nearly all of its tax revenues during the period November 1 through April 1, at which time the taxes become delinquent. The maximum rates of tax are set by the Legislature of the State of Florida. The actual amount assessed is determined by the Board of Trustees of the District, on or before June 1, through adoption of a resolution.

<u>Capital Assets</u>: Capital assets, which include land, buildings, improvements, and infrastructure assets, are reported in the governmental activities of the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial cost of more than \$500 and an estimated useful life of more than one year. Purchased or constructed capital assets are recorded at historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the life of the asset are not capitalized. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives of the various classes of depreciable capital assets are as follows:

	Life - Years			
Buildings and improvements	15 - 30			
Furniture, fixtures and equipment	5 - 10			

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

<u>Fund Equity</u>: Fund equity at the governmental fund financial reporting level is classified as "fund balance." Fund equity for all other reporting is classified as "net position."

Fund Balance: Generally, fund balance represents the difference between the assets and liabilities under the current financial resources measurement focus of accounting. In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the District is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. Fund balances are classified as follows:

- Nonspendable: Fund balances are reported as nonspendable when amounts cannot be spent because they
 are either: (1) not in spendable form (i.e., items that are not expected to be converted to cash); or (2) legally
 or contractually required to be maintained intact.
- Restricted: Fund balances are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either
 through the enabling legislation adopted by the District or through external restrictions imposed by creditors,
 grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.
- Committed: Fund balances are reported as committed when they can be used only for specific purposes
 pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the Board of Trustees. Only the Board of Trustees may
 modify or rescind the commitment.
- Assigned: Fund balances are reported as assigned when amounts are constrained by the District's intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. Currently the Board of Trustees is authorized to assign fund balances.
- Unassigned: Fund balances are reported as unassigned as the residual amount when balances do not
 meet any of the above criterion. The District reports a positive unassigned fund balance only in the General
 Fund. Negative unassigned fund balances may be reported in other funds should the District establish other
 funds at a later time.

Net position: Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. Net position, net investment in capital assets, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net position net investment in capital assets, excludes unspent debt proceeds. Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through enabling legislation or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, laws, or regulations. All net position not reported as net position, net investment in capital assets and restricted net position, is reported as unrestricted net position.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Flow Assumptions: When both restricted and unrestricted amounts of fund balance/net position are available for use for expenditures/expenses incurred, it is the District's policy to use restricted amounts first and then unrestricted amounts as they are needed. For unrestricted amounts of fund balance, it is the District's policy to use fund balance in the following order:

- Committed
- Assigned
- Unassigned

<u>Estimates</u>: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE B: CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2019, was as follows:

	I	Beginning						Ending
		Balance	 Additions	Deletions		Transfers		Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated								
Land	\$	400,000	\$ -	\$	-	\$	-	\$ 400,000
Construction in progress		-	371,921		-			371,921
Total capital assets not being depreciated		400,000	 371,921					 771,921
Capital assets, being depreciated								
Buildings and improvements		1,388,937	154,951		(17,573)			1,526,315
Furniture, fixtures and equipment		304,555	 8,268		(10,274)		-	302,549
Total capital assets being depreciated		1,693,492	 163,219		(27,847)		-	 1,828,864
Less accumulated depreciation for								
Buildings and improvements		758,109	68,871		(8,809)		-	818,171
Furniture, fixtures and equipment		277,468	15,251		(11,597)		-	281,122
Total accumulated depreciation		1,035,577	84,122		(20,406)		_	1,099,293
Total capital assets being depreciated, net		657,915	 79,097		(7,441)			 729,571
Capital assets, net	\$	1,057,915	\$ 451,018	\$	(7,441)	\$		\$ 1,501,492

Depreciation expense of \$84,122 was charged to the culture and recreation function.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE C: RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the District carries commercial insurance. The District has not had any reduction in insurance coverage and the amount of claims resulting from these risks has not exceeded insurance coverage for the past three years.

NOTE D: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

<u>Litigation</u>: The District is not currently involved in any lawsuits.

<u>Grant Contingencies</u>: The District has received federal and state grants in prior years for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the grantor agencies. Such audits could lead to the disallowance of certain expenditures previously reimbursed by those agencies. Based upon prior experience, management of the District believes such disallowances, if any, will not be significant.

NOTE E: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The District has evaluated all subsequent events through February 13, 2020, the date the financial statements were available to be issued. No material subsequent events occurred which would have a material impact on the District's financial statements.

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE-GENERAL FUND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

	Original		Final				Variance With	
		Budget		Budget		Actual	Fi	nal Budget
REVENUES			_					(= =a.)
Property assessments (net of collection fee)	\$	501,268	\$	501,268	\$	493,707	\$	(7,561)
Rental		134,100		134,100		148,963		14,863
Publications, Banner		11,050		11,050		2,882		(8,168)
Pool income		-		-		50		50
Interest income		1,700		1,700		23,412		21,712
Donations		50		50		-		(50)
Other miscellaneous income		9,250		9,250		14,304		5,054
TOTAL REVENUES		657,418		657,418		683,318		25,900
EXPENDITURES								
Current								
Culture and recreation								
Wages		208,400		208,400		243,652		(35,252)
Administrative		103,820		103,820		134,300		(30,480)
Repairs and maintenance		69,280		69,280		73,479		(4,199)
Utilities		40,795		40,795		34,373		6,422
Publications, Banner		22,601		22,601		18,206		4,395
Payroll taxes		15,500		15,500		17,835		(2,335)
Security		1,500		1,500		1,500		-
Concessions		-		-		15		(15)
District activities		11,800		11,800		5,375		6,425
Capital outlay		159,482		159,482		535,140		(375,658)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES		633,178		633,178		1,063,875		(430,697)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues								
over (under) expenditures		24,240		24,240		(380,557)		(404,797)
Fund balance, beginning of year		1,604,260		1,604,260		1,604,260		
Fund balance, end of year	\$	1,628,500	\$	1,628,500	\$	1,223,703	\$	(404,797)

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

NOTE A: BUDGETARY INFORMATION

An annual budget was adopted for the General Fund on the modified accrual basis of accounting, and is used to account for the activity in the General Fund. Appropriations are controlled at the fund level. Appropriations lapse at year-end.

OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORTS



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees Bayshore Gardens Park & Recreation District Bradenton, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities and major fund of Bayshore Gardens Park & Recreation District (the "District"), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 13, 2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weakness or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did identify a deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Responses (Finding 2019-001) that we consider to be a material weakness.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

District's Response to Finding

The District's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Responses. The District's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Mauldin & Jerkins, LLC

Bradenton, Florida February 13, 2020

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

SECTION I SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

Financial Statements	
Type of auditor's report issued	Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:	
Material weaknesses identified?	X_ yes no
Significant deficiencies identified not considered	
to be material weaknesses?	yesX_ none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?	yesXno

Federal Programs and State Financial Assistance Projects

There was not an audit of major federal award programs or state award programs as of September 30, 2019, due to the total amount expended being less than \$750,000.

SECTION II FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS AND RESPONSES

2019-001 Correction of Errors

Criteria: To ensure that financial statements properly present the financial position and results of operations of the District in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), in addition to providing meaningful financial reports to District board members and management, the District should ensure that all material cash balances, liability balances, capital assets, revenues and expenses are properly reflected at year-end. Additionally, reconciliations should be reviewed by management to ensure proper preparation of reconciliations, and that balance sheet accounts are properly supported.

Condition: During testing of the District's balance sheet, we noted the need to increase cash and liabilities in the amount of \$16,000; increase capital assets by \$83,075, increase fund balance by \$511,079, increase expenses by \$428,849, and increase revenues by \$845 as of September 30, 2019. We recommend that the District implement a review process on entries made at months end to better identify potential errors that may exist prior to distribution to the Board.

Context/Cause: Managerial oversight caused these accounts to be misstated.

Effect: Audit adjustments were required to be posted within the District's General Fund for the fair presentation of the financial statements.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

SECTION II FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS AND RESPONSES

2019-001 Correction of Errors (Continued)

Recommendation: We recommend the District evaluate its period closing process to ensure subsidiary ledger reconciliations are being performed timely, properly, and are being reviewed by management.

Management's Response: The District concurs with the adjustments noted above, and has implemented procedures to ensure entries are reviewed by management.

SECTION III FEDERAL PROGRAMS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

None.

SECTION IV
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

None.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S MANAGEMENT LETTER

Board of Trustees
Bayshore Gardens Park & Recreation District
Bradenton, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of the Bayshore Gardens Park & Recreation District (the "District") as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019, and have issued our report thereon dated February 13, 2020.

Auditor's Responsibility

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Chapter 10.550, *Rules of the Auditor General*.

Other Reporting Requirements

We have issued our Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with *Government Auditing Standard* and Independent Accountant's Report on an examination conducted in accordance with AICPA Professional Standards, AT-C Section 315, regarding compliance requirements in accordance with Chapter 10.550, *Rules of the Auditor General.* Disclosures in those reports, which are dated February 13, 2020, should be considered in conjunction with this management letter.

Prior Audit Findings

Section 10.554(1)(i)1., *Rules of the Auditor General*, requires that we determine whether or not corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding financial audit report. There were no findings or recommendations in the preceding annual financial audit report requiring correction.

Official Title and Legal Authority

Section 10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and legal authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in this management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The Bayshore Gardens Park & Recreation District is an independent special district created by the Florida Legislature in 1979 by House Bill 1233. The District has no component units.

Financial Condition and Management

Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.a. and 10.556(7), *Rules of the Auditor General*, require us to apply appropriate procedures and communicate the results of our determination as to whether or not the District has met one or more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), *Florida Statutes*, and to identify the specific condition(s) met. In connection with our audit, we determined that the District did not meet any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), *Florida Statutes*.

Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.b. and 10.556(8), *Rules of the Auditor General*, we applied financial condition assessment procedures for the District. It is management's responsibility to monitor the District's financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by management and review of financial information provided by same.

Section 10.554(1)(i)2., *Rules of the Auditor General*, requires that we communicate any recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such recommendations.

Additional Matters

Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate noncompliance with provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but warrants the attention of those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not note any such findings.

Purpose of this Letter

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor General, federal and other granting agencies, the Board of Trustees and applicable management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Mauldin & Jerkins, LLC

Bradenton, Florida February 13, 2020



INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT

Board of Trustees
Bayshore Gardens Park & Recreation District
Bradenton, Florida

We have examined Bayshore Gardens Park & Recreation District's (the "District") compliance with Section 218.415, *Florida Statutes*, regarding the investment of public funds during the year ended September 30, 2019. Management is responsible for the District's compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the District's compliance based on our examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and perform the examination to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the District complied, in all material respects, with the specified requirements referenced above. An examination involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about whether the District complied with the specified requirements. The nature, timing and extent of the procedures selected depend on our judgement, including an assessment of the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the District's compliance with specified requirements.

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements for the year ended September 30, 2019.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the District, the Auditor General, and the State of Florida, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC

Bradenton, Florida February 13, 2020